ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE TRANSPCORTATI ON STANDI NG COW TTEE
February 6, 2016
1: 02 p. m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Represent ati ve Shel |l ey Hughes, Co-Chair
Representati ve Neal Foster, Co-Chair
Represent ati ve Benj am n Nageak
Representative Louise Stutes
Representative Dan Otiz

Representative Matt C aman

MEMBERS ABSENT
Representative Charisse MIlett
COW TTEE CALENDAR
HOUSE BI LL NO. 249
"An Act requiring the electronic subm ssion of a tax return or
report with the Departnent of Revenue; relating to the notor
fuel tax; and providing for an effective date."
- HEARD & HELD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON

BILL: HB 249
SHORT TI TLE: ELECTRONI C TAX RETURNS & MOTOR FUEL TAX
SPONSOR(s): RULES BY REQUEST OF THE GOVERNOR

01/ 19/ 16 (H READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 19/ 16 (H TRA, FIN

01/ 28/ 16 (H TRA AT 2: 00 PM CAPI TOL 17

01/ 28/ 16 (H Heard & Hel d

01/ 28/ 16 (H M NUTE( TRA)

02/ 04/ 16 (H TRA AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 17

02/ 04/ 16 (H Heard & Hel d

02/ 04/ 16 (H M NUTE( TRA)

02/ 06/ 16 (H TRA AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 17

W TNESS REG STER

BETH FREAD
Pal mer, Al aska

HOUSE TRA COWM TTEE -1- February 6, 2016



PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified regardi ng HB 249.

STEVE ST. CLAIR
Wasilla, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 249.

ABBY ST. CLAIR
Wasill a, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 249.

M KE COONS
Pal mer, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 249.

ED ZASTROW
Ket chi kan, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified regardi ng HB 249.

CLAY MURPHY
North Pol e, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 249.

BRI AN MCNEI L
Fai r banks, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 249.

JI M SYKES
Pal mer, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 249.

BRI AN SI MPSON
Fai r banks, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 249.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE
1: 02: 18 PM

CO CHAI R SHELLEY HUGHES cal l ed the House Transportation Standing
Commttee neeting back to order at 1:02 p.m Represent ati ves
Nageak, Stutes, Otiz, daman, and Hughes were present at the
call back to order. Representative Foster arrived as the
meeting was in progress. [ The House Transportation Standing
Committee reconvened from a neeting that was recessed at 3:01
p.m on February 4, 2016.]

HOUSE TRA COWM TTEE - 2- February 6, 2016



HB 249- ELECTRONI C TAX RETURNS & MOTOR FUEL TAX

1: 02: 30 PM

CO CHAI R HUGHES announced that the only order of business would
be HOUSE BILL NO 249 "An Act requiring the electronic
submi ssion of a tax return or report with the Departnent of
Revenue; relating to the notor fuel tax; and providing for an
effective date."

CO CHAIR HUGHES noted that public testinony renained open from
t he previous neeting.

1: 03: 57 PM

COCHAIR HUGHES directed commttee nenbers' attention to 24
witten testinonies received by her office since the previous
neeting and noted that 22 of those expressed concern regarding
the proposed legislation. She indicated that any additional
witten public testinony would be added to the record.

1: 05: 07 PM

BETH FREAD stated that she appreciated the opportunity to speak
regarding HB 249, because she works in the real estate industry
and, accordingly, is alnobst always on the road. She i ndi cated
that she does not necessarily oppose the proposed |egislation,
but that she believes the proposed notor fuel taxes should have
caps applied. She expounded that [Alaskans] experienced gas

prices over four dollars per gallon in the previous year. She
explained that high prices resulted in a huge cut to her
revenue. She requested that |anguage be included in the

| egislation stipulating that if gas prices clinb to a specified
level, the tax would roll back to a lower rate. She opined that
the bill should not be considered until the state budget is cut
and suggested that no new revenue be generated until the budget
had been reduced to between $4.2 and $4.5 billion. She st ated
her understanding that [state governnment] can utilize permanent
fund earnings to help fund governnment for a period of tinme, and
she reenphasized her belief that [the state] should reduce
spending prior to "making noney from [citizens'] pockets."
Addi tionally, she expressed doubt regarding the governor's plan
to defund the permanent fund, and she urged the commttee to
oppose the plan.

1: 07: 18 PM

HOUSE TRA COWM TTEE - 3- February 6, 2016



STEVE ST. CLAIR stated that HB 249 would have a negative i npact
on all Al askans, especially those living subsistence |ifestyles,
and he explained that rural Alaskans wutilize notor fuel,
aviation fuel, and watercraft fuel for survival. He recounted a
conversation with his nother-in-law, an I|nupiat woman who was
raised in rural Alaska, during which she explained that al

those fuel types are used by people in the villages. He related
that in Shishmaref, notor fuel is used in ATVs and snow machi nes
for transportation and hunting, and in sonme instances notor fuel
is utilized for cooking stoves and | anps. He pointed out that
many comunities in Alaska are accessible only by plane and
wat ercraft, and the cost of basic anenities are very high in
these locations. He stated that nany people in rural areas nust
travel to Anchorage, for nedical appointments, and their
associated airline tickets are primarily paid for by the state.
He noted that many [rural Al askans] use the nedical trips to
Anchorage as an opportunity to purchase basic anenities due to
the price differences. He referenced an exanple of toilet paper
bei ng cheaper to ship from Anchorage than it is to purchase in
the villages and posited that the proposed notor fuel tax
increases would serve to further increase prices of consuner

goods in the villages. He informed the commttee that despite
recent price reductions for fuel in cities, prices remain high
off the road system He insisted that the proposed tax

increases would be disproportionately burdensone to [Al askans]
living subsistence lifestyles, which is necessitated by a |ack
of jobs in rural Al aska.

MR. ST. CLAIR stated that HB 249 is estimated to generate $40
mllion for the general fund, which he clainmed was "another

nonster that needs to be addressed.” He held that adding
revenue to the general fun encourages the growth of governnent,
whi ch he considered counterproductive in a fiscal crisis. He

explained that in 2014 the State of Al aska paid $39.6 mllion to
rural Al askans via the Power Cost Equalization Program (PCEP)

He posited that it would be counter intuitive to increase fue

taxes on the sanme group of people receiving subsidies for high
fuel costs. He reenphasized his belief that HB 249 was a "bad
bill" and should never |eave conmttee, and stated that taxation
and changes to the pernmanent fund and pernmanent fund dividend
should never be considered until government is "right-sized."
He maintained that the "magic nunber"” is $4.5 [billion] in
unrestricted general fund spending in Fiscal Year 2017 (FY 17)
and opined that any attenpt that fails to neet the threshold is
a disingenuous attenpt to solve [Alaska's] fiscal problem He
encouraged the comrittee to oppose HB 249.

HOUSE TRA COWM TTEE - 4- February 6, 2016



1:10: 42 PM

ABBY ST. CLAIR testified in opposition to HB 249. She rel ated
that in Shishmaref, where she was raised, the cost of living is
i ncredi bly high, and warned that an increase in fuel taxes would
result in a corresponding increase in the cost of necessities.
She informed the conmittee that the current fuel price [in
Shishmaref] is $6.99 per gallon. She explained that [high fue
prices] make hunting, fishing, and the subsistence lifestyle
passed down by her ancestors nore difficult. She requested that
[the legislature] reassess the current budget and find other
nmeans [of bal ancing the budget] before increasing taxes.

1:11: 33 PM

MKE COONS stated his opposition to HB 249 and noted that
Governor Bill Walker has suggested that [state governnent]
cannot cut its way to a sustainable budget. He suggested that

the governor's $100 to $200 million in proposed budget cuts
would do very little toward the goal of devel oping a sustainable
budget. He explained that he opposed the proposition of
utilizing the permanent fund, and he posited that the governor's
proposed state incone tax is unfair to people who work because,
like all "progressive tax schenes,” |ow incone residents do not
pay the tax but do soak up the majority of Departnment of Health
and Social Services spending. He indicated that although the
governor's proposed sal es t ax i's fairer, it is
di sproportionately visited upon those with |ow incones. I n
reference to the proposed "sin taxes" on al cohol and tobacco, he
expressed doubt that the increased cost wuld lead to any
meani ngf ul reduction in usage.

VR. COONS transitioned to a discussion of the proposed
| egislation and noted that President Oobana had recently proposed

legislation that would create a $10 per barrel oil tax for
alternative energy. He stated that Section 3 of the proposed
| egislation raised nmany questions that would create difficult
accounting circunstances for gas stations. He pointed out that
all tax increases would be between 100 and 175 percent of
current rates. He listed the proposed rate changes described in
Section 3 of the bill and stated that he found them confusing.

He stated his assunption that fuel oil for home heating, which
is diesel, would be included in the tax scheme and suggested
that a heating fuel tax increase would significantly inpact
rentals and honeowners. He contended that the "off-road use"
refund outlined in Section 5 of the proposed legislation is
conmplicated in ternms of the logistics of applying for the

HOUSE TRA COWM TTEE - 5- February 6, 2016



refund; he questioned how a gas station could determ ne the
pur pose of the fuel being purchased and how an individual would

be conpensated for his/her due refund. He concluded, "This is
not a perfect bill; this is a horrible bill. Get a big backhoe
and burry this bill ten feet under poured concrete.”

1:15: 04 PM

ED ZASTROW stated that he has lived in the territory and state
of Al aska for over 50 years. He acknow edged that the state is
currently "enjoying a fiscal problent and requested that if the
proposed tax increase were to be inplenented, [the |egislature]
consider inposing the tax increase in a "stepped" nanner over
the next several years. He pointed out that other taxes are
going to be inplenented and "stepping" the notor fuel tax
i ncreases would hel p [manage the transition].

1:16: 33 PM

CLAY MURPHY shared that he is a veteran, a 35-year resident of
the state of Alaska, a retired A aska Railroad worker, a forner
fuel truck driver, and he currently drives busses. He stated
that he had always voted in local, state, and federal elections,
and he opposed the notor fuel tax increases proposed in HB 249
as they would increase the cost of energy in the interior. He
di scussed how conpani es cascade their cost of doing business to
consuners and pointed out that the proposed |egislation would
doubl e or even quadruple current notor fuel tax rates but would
not significantly inprove the current budget circunstance. He
said he agreed with previous comrents suggesting that the state
shoul d nake neani ngful spending cuts, and he related that the
conpani es he has worked for in the past all ran their businesses
on revenues; when revenues decreased, the conpanies were forced
to make neani ngful cuts. He noted that he hasn't seen that occur
with Alaska's state governnent. He said the first action that
state government wants to take in response to the budget
shortfall is to inplenment resident taxes, which he opined was
the wrong action. He stated that businesses nmake cuts if their
projected revenues are estimated to be | ower. He cited severa
busi ness- based exanples of how the state could reduce costs,
i ncl udi ng: i npl enentation of a hiring freeze, cancellation of
travel rei nbur senent s, restructuring agenci es, facility
consol idation, sale of unnecessary buildings and | ands, delay of
pronotions, parking and potentially disposing of equipnment and
vehi cl es, cancel l ation of unnecessary services, i ncreased
scrutiny and neani ngful reductions at all |evels of nanagenent,

HOUSE TRA COWM TTEE - 6- February 6, 2016



and inplenentation of a wage cut with a pronm se of reinstatenent
upon return of revenues.

MR. MJURPHY stated that if a tax is created, it nust sunset at a
certain point. He posited that an existing agency should
perform the work of taxation; no new agencies or personnel
should be allowed, as no increase to governnent could be
responsi bly all owed. He held that businesses will not ask for
i ncreased taxation, but those who work for state agencies and
the University of Alaska wll say "we should pay our fair
share. ™ He opined that Al askan residents already pay their
"fair share." He specified that his federal taxes increase
every year, and his property mll rate is increasing. He
expl ained that the state receives significant funding, given its
popul ation, from the federal governnent and the noney is from
t axpayers. He recommended that the |egislature begin spending
cuts by "trimmng the fat" in the Departnent of Transportation &
Public Facilities (DOTPF) and taking actions such as those
listed previously. He stated that the conm ssioner of an agency
should have the ability to perform the necessary streanlining
and restructuring or they should be replaced by soneone who can.
He acknow edged that the reductions are difficult, but
mai ntai ned that strong |eadership is necessary at this tinme. He
stated his opposition for tapping the permanent fund, but said
if it nust happen, he would support Senator MQiire's proposed
| egi sl ation. He advised the conmittee that the Anchorage LIO
debacle is an enbarrassnent to the state, and he conpared it to
former Governor Miurkowski's jet.

1: 21: 52 PM

BRIAN MCNEIL stated that Al aska's per gallon [highway] fuel tax
rates are either the lowest or close to the |lowest of the 50
states and the average state highway fuel tax rate 1is
approxi mately $0.30 per gallon, while the highest rate is $0.50
per gallon. He commented that based on [Alaska's] difficult
t opography, |arge geographic area, inclenent weather conditions,
smal | popul ation, and the associated nmintenance requirenents,
he does not understand how [ Al aska's notor fuel tax rate] is not
hi gher . He maintained that Alaska is an expensive state, wth
regard to transportation for the aforenentioned reasons, and he
said he doesn't see a way around it. He affirnmed that he does
not like to pay taxes any nore than anyone else, but stated his
bel i ef that Al askans nust be reasonabl e.

1: 24: 20 PM

HOUSE TRA COWM TTEE -7- February 6, 2016



JIM SYKES acknow edged the severity of Alaska's fiscal crisis
and stated that a nmotor fuel tax increase seened reasonable
under the circunstance. He stated his hope that notor fuel tax
revenues would be applied toward maintenance, as the federal
governnment  will provide significant funding toward road
construction, but very little for nmintenance purposes. He
explained that the result of that inbalance is that many roads
have been constructed, but there is |l ess noney to maintain them
He noted that many Bush communities use fuel but do not have
roads to mmintain; he enphasized the inportance of providing
sonme |evel of funding to rural comunity services if their taxes
are also going to be raised. He stated that it is appropriate
for the tax to be applied by the gallon, specifically due to the
incredi bly high cost of fuel in rural communities. He indicated
that upon consideration of revenue options after making budget
cuts, the proposed nmotor fuel tax increase would be a prudent
choice. He noted that Al aska does not have dedicated funds, and
accordingly he expressed his hope that the revenue generated
from the proposed tax increase wuld be wutilized for a
conbi nation of both road maintenance and comunity services in
rural comunities. He said he was not sure he supported the
bill, but indicated his belief that the proposal was headed in
the right direction because [Alaskan's] nust start paying their
own way.

1:26: 30 PM

BRI AN SI MPSON enphasized his opposition to the proposed tax
i ncrease. He said Alaska is already a "welfare state" and
expounded that there is little consideration of small business
owners who "actually work for a living." He posited that the
i dea  of increasing the cost of per sonal or busi ness

transportation is abhorrent and remarked that the cost of
funding state enployees and their associated benefits packages
is a significant financial stressor. He indicated that in
addition to the cost associated with state enployees, there are
substantial costs associated with "a big block of people who
just live off of the state.” He pointed out that the
adm ni strative costs associated with providing services to rural
areas would increase in relation to the increased transportation
costs that the proposed |egislation would cause. He contended
that the best course of action would be to slowy dismantle the
dependency of residents, ween people off of the state, and
encourage people to have "real jobs" and produce things. He
enphasi zed his belief that this tax proposal is a particularly
bad idea, and he does not see any gain for people who actually
work for a living and contribute to the state. As an aside, he

HOUSE TRA COWM TTEE - 8- February 6, 2016



i ndi cated his opposition to electronic filing and the inposition
of an incone tax for the cited reason that incone taxes also
puni sh those who work. He urged the commttee, "Dismantle this
wel fare state; the witing is on the wall."

1: 32: 43 PM

REPRESENTATI VE NAGEAK stated that the proposed tax increases are
di sproportionately ainmed at people who can't afford to pay them
particularly people in rural Al aska. He explained that nost
good jobs available in rural Alaska require skilled |aborers,
and many rural residents don't have those skillsets; therefore,
nost available jobs are filled by shift workers who live on the
road system He stated that there are both organized and
unorgani zed boroughs in the state, as 1is constitutionally
mandat ed, and boroughs have a duty to step up and find ways to
raise revenues in their communities. He indicated that his
borough has taken the initiative [since establishnment] to build
infrastructure in the village, including power plants, health
clinics, and runways. He related that his borough took
advant age when opportunity presented itself in the form of tax
revenues fromthe oil industry.

REPRESENTATI VE NAGEAK suggested that people should be |ess
concerned about state spending and nore concerned about their
own boroughs, and he reconmended that |ocal governnments take the
initiative to [solve their fiscal problens]. He said many
people call for cuts [to state spending], but none of them want
to cut services that affect them He expressed the need for
honest discussion regarding [the fiscal crisis] and noted that
[Alaska] is in [a fiscal circunstance] where a bucket of chicken
is nore expensive than a barrel of oil. He remarked that
[ Al aska's econony] is near "the bottom of the barrel” and
accordingly all [Al askans] nust "give and take." He stated that
[solving the budget crisis] will be difficult, but it nust be
done. He stated that the governor's proposals are in front of
[the legislature] and that the conversations had begun. He
encouraged Al askan residents to call in and share their ideas
with the legislature regarding solutions for the fiscal problem
and he acknowl edged that [the legislature] can't be afraid to
make tough deci sions.

1:39: 03 PM
CO CHAIR HUGHES comrented to clarify that funds coll ected under

HB 249 would not be reflective of a user fee, in that there
woul d not be a requirenent that the revenue be used specifically

HOUSE TRA COWM TTEE - 9- February 6, 2016



toward transportation infrastructure, with the exception of a
requirenent that taxes on aviation fuel are used to fund
ai rports. She further clarified that all fuel tax revenues are
deposited into the general fund. She noted that despite being
one of the states with the |owest fuel tax rates in the nation
Al aska still has one of the highest cost per gallon of fuel
She nmentioned a federal proposal being considered by the current
adm nistration, which, if it were to pass, would increase the
price per gallon of gasoline by $0.25.

1: 40: 25 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ORTI Z t hanked everyone who testified for sharing
their views on Alaska' s fiscal situation. He stated that
government, by the people, for the people is not just an idea;
it can be a reality. He conplinented testifiers for taking the
tinme to share comments and nmaking it nore of a reality. He
commented, regarding the governor's proposal in general, that
the governor did conme up with a plan knowi ng that sonme of his
tax proposals would be wunpopular, even wth hinself. He
expressed his appreciation for the governor's denonstrated
| eadership in formulating a plan for the legislature "to pick
apart and criticize." He added that although the |egislature has

unpopul ar options to choose from the alternative is
significantly nore budget cuts. In response to the criticism
that the governor's proposed $100 mllion budget cut is not

| arge enough, he rem nded that in the previous session, with the
governor's |eadership, the legislature cut approximtely $450

mllion from the operating budget and $400 mllion from the
capi tal budget. He contended that the proposed cuts for this
session cannot be considered outside the context of cuts from
the previous session, and he noted that those cuts wll nean

significant reductions in services that are inportant to people.
1:43: 05 PM

CO CHAI R HUGHES t hanked the participants.

[ HB 249 was hel d over. ]

ADJ QURNIVENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House

Transportation Standing Commttee neeting was adjourned at 1:44
p. m

HOUSE TRA COWM TTEE -10- February 6, 2016



